Jamie Cowan
Executive Director of Finance
Flint Community Schools
923 E. Kearsley Flint, MI 48503
Addendum #3
TELEPHONE SERVICES RFP - FLINT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

Monday, May 6, 2019
Note: See Bidder questions below with answers from the District in blue. If your question does not appear
below, it may be that it is already answered in the RFP or in answer to a similar question, or that the District
has deemed that an answer is unnecessary to successful bidding.
Question 1: Who is your existing phone and data provider?
The District currently contracts with AT&T.
Question 2: Please identify if you have a private LAN/WAN and your software version.
Yes, we do have a private LAN. Please clarify what you mean by software version.
Question 3: Where are your primary and secondary headend addresses?
Primary - 923 E. Kearsley St. Flint, MI 48503
Secondary - 6602 Oxley Dr. Flint, MI 48504
Question 4: You call out Cisco handsets. Do you need handsets included in the bid. If so, how many? How many
handsets will you be providing at each location?
The District currently owns two models of Cisco Equipment: Cisco Unified IP Phone 7962G and Cisco Unified IP
Phone 6921. The district is specifically requesting services that are compatible with existing equipment. We
intend to keep our existing, owned, equipment as a cost savings being that we are a deficit district. However,
the District is open to receiving recommendations for equipment that would replace existing equipment.
Should you choose to provide that information, please provide it as an alternative bid.
Updated totals show a count of 651 Cisco phones. Our IT Services team is working to complete an inventory of
devices in the District. Below are the counts of devices we know should exist in the District and what we are
asking be supported. Once the inventory has been completed we will be able to provide a more accurate count
of what is currently in use.

Administration Building
ALA/NWHS
Brownell STEM
Doyle-Ryder
DTM
Eisenhower
Freeman
Holmes STEM
Neithercut
Pierce
Potter
Scott
Southwestern
Carpenter Rd.
Maintenance/Transportation
Northern
Williams

7962
85
11
3
4
8
2
2
8
3
3
4
1
11
3
20
13
3
184

6921
29
68
17
21
33
15
16
67
12
25
27
27
71
13
5
16
5
467

Question 5: Will you be requiring your PRI to remain active after installation, or are you looking to convert PRI/SIP
immediately?
The District hopes to convert immediately, given that our current services are expiring. However, depending on
the time it will take to make the transition, we cannot definitively say whether the PRI will need to remain
active for a period of time after the transition. Our current contracts with AT&T are not aligned. We have
three contracts expiring this year and the other three expiring next year. Please provide details in your
proposal on how your company can make this transition immediately, or why not.
Question 6: How many phone sessions do you need per building?
Please specify if you are referring to simultaneous calls.
Question 7: Do you need Administrative/Secretarial/Conference sessions at any of your buildings? If so how many?
Secretarial extension devices?
Are you referring specifically to conference calling capabilities within Departments/Buildings? If so, these
services are not covered under our current contract. Should you choose to provide this service, along with
secretarial extension devices, please include it as an alternative bid.
Question 8: If possible will you consider extending the deadline for this bid submission. This is fairly large.
No. The District is unable to extend the deadline for this RFP as we are on a strict deadline to begin services.

Question 9: Can you please provide a network diagram of the Flint Community Schools' environment?
Please refer to Attachment A.
Question 10: What details can be offered with regard to the FCS's Wide Area Network?
Any needed details can be provided. Topology, VLAN’s, network infrastructure equipment. Please specify.

Question 11: Is Internet delivered to a Main location and then distributed through the School’s managed network, or
is internet service delivered to each building?
Internet is delivered to the main location and then distributed to each building. Main location is FCS
Administration Building.
Question 12: Is the current solution leveraging a Cisco platform, either onsite, or hosted offsite?
Cisco equipment is hosted on site.
Question 13: Can you please list the Telecommunication services by type (PRI, POTS, Centrex, etc.) and quantity for
each of the locations listed in the RFP?
The Districts current telecommunication service type is PRI, POTS and Centrex:
Accelerated Learning Academy: Centrex: 19, POTS: 1, PRI: 80
Administration Building: Centrex: 34, POTS: 1, PRI: 116
Brownell STEM Academy: Centrex 5, POTS: 1, PRI: 20
Doyle-Ryder Elementary: Centrex 5, POTS: 1, PRI: 25
Durant-Tuuri-Mott Elementary: Centrex 13, POTS: 1, PRI: 40
Eisenhower Elementary: Centrex 5, POTS: 1, PRI: 17
Freeman Elementary: Centrex 7, POTS: 1, PRI: 18
Holmes STEM Academy: Centrex 4, POTS: 1, PRI: 73
Neithercut Elementary: Centrex 8, POTS: 1, PRI: 15
Pierce Elementary: Centrex 6, POTS: 1, PRI: 28
Potter Elementary: Centrex 4, POTS: 1, PRI: 31
Scott School: Centrex 7, POTS: 1, PRI: 29
Southwestern Classical Academy: Centrex 23, POTS: 1, PRI: 83
Maintenance & Custodial Building: Centrex 6, POTS: 1, PRI: 27

The following is a list of closed locations that have POTs, PRIs and Centrex lines associated with them:
Carpenter Rd. Elementary: Centrex: 4, POTS: 1, PRI: 18
Northern Academy: Centrex: 6, POTS: 1, PRI: 37
Williams Elementary: Centrex: 6, POTS: 1, PRI: 8
Bryant Elementary: Centrex: 1
Cummings Elementary: Centrex: 15
Manley Elementary: Centrex: 4
Summerfield Elementary: Centrex: 3

Question 14: Why are you requesting a bid at this time?
Our current contract expires June 30, 2019.
Question 15: Can you describe the current network design?
Please specify what is requested/needed.
a.Is there any plans to change the WAN design or Service Provider?
There are no plans to change WAN design at this time.
Question 16: Are there any sites that require survivability?
Yes.
a. Which ones?
Accelerated Learning Academy
Administration Building
Brownell STEM Academy
Doyle-Ryder Elementary
Durant-Tuuri-Mott Elementary
Eisenhower Elementary
Freeman Elementary
Holmes STEM Academy
Neithercut Elementary
Pierce Elementary
Potter Elementary
Scott School
Southwestern Classical Academy
Maintenance & Custodial Building
b. What sites have Internet services?
All.
c. Can you describe the current Internet Services by those sites?
All buildings have internet access through connecting to the Administration Building or any of the 3 other high
schools. We receive internet connection through the Genesee Intermediate School District (GISD) and not
directly through ISP.
Question 17: Is any analog extensions require?
Yes.
a. If so, how many and at what sites?
At least 2 lines per site. The District is currently exploring alternatives for analog lines so this count and
requirement may change in the future.
Question 18: Why are you requesting a contract term of 1 year?
Our current contracts with AT&T are not aligned. We have three contracts expiring this year and the other
three expiring next year.

Question 19: What other locations in the District would be considered 'Back Up' locations?
The Administration Building is where our main circuit is located, should this site go down, there is a backup
circuit located at Brownell/Holmes campus. This set up has been sufficient and the District does not elect any
other sites as ‘Back Up’ locations.
Question 20: Please provide make, model, and software version for the network switches.
Cisco (3560, 3650, 2960, 3850) Software versions are listed below:
Version 03.07.05E
Version 12.2(55)SE7
Version 12.2(40)SE
Version 03.06.06E
Question 21: If a premise hosted solution, will Flint Community Schools provide a VMWare environment? If so, please
provide the VMWare version.
ESXi 6.0.0 2494585
Question 22: Will the Flint Community Schools purchase off another contract such as the State of Michigan (MiDeal),
MiCTA, etc…
No.
Question 23: What level of redundancy, level of survivability, is Flint Community Schools looking for?
The District is looking for the ability to make calls and emergency calls (however limited) in the event of
connectivity issues to the network. Our current system routes calls over the Public Switched Telephone
Network (PSTN) network in the event of connectivity failure. Our current site survivability feature is provided
via a managed Voice Gateway “VGW” that is installed on the premises. The VGW detects loss of connection to
the UC Voice Service and re-routes limited calls and emergency calls to the our local PSTN trunks connected to
the VGW.
Due to the critical nature of our operations, please describe in your proposal how your proposed system will
allow the district to make calls and emergency calls (however limited) in the event that our connection to the
network goes down. 911 calls must be prioritized.
Question 24: Do you want the system to be E911 compliant? If so, do you want every phone or just certain phones
within a building?
Yes, the District wants the system to be E911 complaint.
Certain phones within the building—The telephones in the Main Office are the ones we designate.
Question 25: Please provide the site addresses and counts for each of the Off Sites locations.
To clarify, there are no off-site locations outside of the referenced buildings. The 136 count refers to
additional telephone numbers and Cisco devices that are currently in the district that we request to be
supported as well.
Accelerated Learning Academy – G-2138 W. Carpenter Rd. Flint, 48505
Administration Building –923 E. Kearsley St. Flint, 48503
Brownell STEM Academy –6302 Oxley Dr. Flint, 48504
Doyle-Ryder Elementary –1040 N. Saginaw St. Flint, 48503
Durant-Tuuri-Mott Elementary –1518 University Ave. Flint, 48504
Eisenhower Elementary –1235 Pershing St. Flint, 48503
Freeman Elementary –4001 Ogema St. Flint, 48507
Holmes STEM Academy –6602 Oxley Dr. Flint, 48504
Neithercut Elementary –2010 Crestbrook Ln. 48507
Pierce Elementary –1101 W. Vernon Dr. Flint, 48503
Potter Elementary –2500 N. Averill Ave. Flint, 48506
Scott School –1602 S. Averill Ave. Flint, 48503
Southwestern Classical Academy –1420 W. Twelfth St. Flint, 48507
Maintenance & Custodial Building –1602 W. Twelfth St. Flint, 48507

Question 26: Will Flint Community Schools look at term longer than 1 year? 3 year, 5 year?
The District is looking to contract for one (1) year but we are open to negotiating renewals for additional
years.
Question 27: Please provide the number of phone numbers per location and use such as Alarms, Elevators, Security,
and Phone Lines.
The District current telecommunication service type is PRI, POTS and Centrex:
Accelerated Learning Academy:
Administration Building: Centrex: 34 (5 alarms, 1 energy), POTS: 1, PRI: 116
Brownell STEM Academy: Centrex 5 (3 alarm, 1 911, 1 energy), POTS: 1, PRI: 20
Doyle-Ryder Elementary: Centrex 5 (2 alarm, 1 energy, 1 911, 1 Fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 25
Durant-Tuuri-Mott Elementary: Centrex 13 (2 alarm, 1 fax) POTS: 1, PRI: 40
Eisenhower Elementary: Centrex 5 (3 alarm, 1 fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 17
Freeman Elementary: Centrex 7(2 alarm, 1 911, 1 Fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 18
Holmes STEM Academy: Centrex 4 (3 alarm, 1 fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 73
Neithercut Elementary: Centrex 8 (3 alarm, 1 911, 1 energy, 1 fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 15
Pierce Elementary: Centrex 6 (2 alarm 1 911, 1 energy, 1 fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 28
Potter Elementary: Centrex 7 (3 alarm, 1 911, 1 energy, 1 fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 31
Scott School: Centrex 7 (5 alarm, 1 energy), POTS: 1, PRI: 29
Southwestern Classical Academy: Centrex 23 (3 alarm, 1 911, 1 energy, 1 fax), POTS: 1, PRI: 83
Maintenance & Custodial Building: Centrex 6, POTS: 1, PRI: 27
The following is a list of closed locations that have POTs, PRIs and Centrex lines associated with them:
Carpenter Rd. Elementary: Centrex: 4 (2 alarm), POTS: 1, PRI: 18
Northern Academy: Centrex: 6 (3 alarm), POTS: 1, PRI: 37
Williams Elementary: Centrex: 6 (3 alarm), POTS: 1, PRI: 8
Bryant Elementary: Centrex: 1
Cummings Elementary: Centrex: 15
Manley Elementary: Centrex: 4
Summerfield Elementary: Centrex: 3
Question 28: If vendor solution is a premise base and requires phones, are you looking for a switch port on the
phones? If so, 10/100 or 10/100/1000 is required.
10/100 should be fine.
Question 29: What email system does Flint Community Schools currently use?
Microsoft Office 365.
Question 30: In addition to all of the other rights which the District may have to cancel this agreement, The District
shall have the further right, without assigning any reason therefore, to terminate any work under the Contract
Documents, in whole or in part, at any time at its complete discretion by providing 10 days’ notice in writing from
the District to Seller. If the Contract is terminated by the District in accordance with this paragraph, Seller will be
paid in an amount which bears the same ratio to the total compensation as does the Goods or Services actually
delivered or performed to the total originally contemplated in the Contract. Please explain how the total
compensation will be paid at the time of cancellation. Will it be a % of the unpaid balance or some other
method?
Compensation will be prorated, based on the number of days services were provided, for the month services
are terminated.
Question 31: In regards to the following statement in the RFP - The System must be able to interface to the public
telephone network through telephone company trunks and facilities that service the local area. It shall be capable of
accepting any mix of trunks including Primary Rate Interface (PRI), local dial tone services (POTS and Centrex), and
SIP trunking.- This does not normally apply to a Hosted Cloud based system, but to an Onsite system. Is an onsite
system acceptable as an alternate?
Yes.

Question 32: Of the 699 Cisco phones , how many are allocated to classrooms and how many to the office staff and
administration?
To clarify, updated totals show a count of 651 Cisco phones and detailed below are the total device counts. Our
IT Services team are working to complete an inventory of devices that are assigned to classrooms and Office
Staff/Administration. At this time, we can confirm that not every classroom has a phone.
Cisco 7962G – 184
Cisco 6921 – 467

Question 33: Paging- Is there a need to access an existing paging/intercom system at the 13 building stated on 1.18.
Is access to paging provided today with the existing Cisco system.
No, there is not a need to access an existing paging/intercom system. No, the existing, owned, Cisco system
does not provide paging capabilities.
Question 34: Is the existing Cisco system on-site system and is fiber utilized to connect all sites today?
Yes.
Question 35: Section 1.18- Reference- Off-site Locations- 136- Are these sites connected via fiber or VPN’s- this
assumes you have an on-site system today. Do these 136 off site locations have Internet service today directly
terminated at their site?
To clarify, there are no off-site locations outside of the referenced buildings. The 136 count refers to
additional telephone numbers and Cisco devices that are currently in the district that we request to be
supported as well.
Question 36: Existing Internet- Is your existing internet service terminated at your head end data center and
extended to the other 12 buildings via fiber? What is the speed of you existing internet service.
Yes. Internet service is terminated at the Administration Building. Internet speed is currently between 1 and 2
GB.
Question 37: Will there be a public bid opening on May 13, 2019?
No. Please refer to Section 1.4 Opening of Proposals.
Question 38: Is a “fully managed” onsite system based on a monthly cost acceptable as alternate?
Yes.
Question 39: Do each of the buildings have Direct Internet Access?
All buildings have internet access through connecting to the Administration Building or any of the 3 other high
schools. We receive internet connection through the Genesee Intermediate School District (GISD) and not
directly through ISP.
Question 40: How many physical FAX machines?
There is an estimated 20 fax machines currently in the District.
Question 41: What are the quantities and models of the Paging systems?
We currently do not have paging systems.
Question 42: The Cisco 7926G and 6921 phones are End of Life, is it OK to substitute equivalents in proposal?
The District is specifically requesting services that are compatible with existing equipment. We intend to keep
our existing, owned, equipment as a cost savings being that we are a deficit district. However, the District is
open to receiving recommendations for equipment that would replace existing equipment. Should you choose
to provide that information, please provide it as an alternative bid.
Question 43: What network electronics are in use today? How old are they?
Our networking equipment (switches) are mainly Cisco. Their ages vary between 2007 and 2015.
a. Is there a plan to refresh the electronics?
We are planning to refresh/upgrade older (aging) switches through the E-Rate project very soon (July 2019).

Question 44: What contract term are you looking for the hosted system- 36 Month?
The District is looking for 1 year contract term with an option to renew.
Question 45: How many classroom phones?
Below are the totals of Cisco devices currently in the District. Our IT Services team are working to complete an
inventory of devices that are assigned to classrooms. We can confirm that not every classroom has a telephone.
Cisco 7962G – 184
Cisco 6921 – 467

Attachment A

